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Dear Sirs

Response To Consultation On The Future Of The Legal Practice Course
We have considered the consultation paper relating to the future of the Legal Practice Course in some detail. I have set out below in bold each of the questions that you raised; each question is then followed by our views.

Disengaging the Electives

We invited all the firms and other bodies whom we know take trainee solicitors in South Yorkshire to a meeting to discuss the proposal to disengage the electives. This response is based, in part, upon the views expressed in that meeting.

Do you agree with the principle of offering to students the choice of disengaging the 

electives? 
By putting the issue in terms of offering choice you make it difficult to disagree, but you have to consider the practical consequences. Even for those studying the electives immediately after the LPC, the whole study and examination period is likely to be longer than it is now. It is also likely to be more expensive; there will be increased administration costs (relating to admissions, exam boards, validation, external examiners and so on) which will have to be funded somehow. If very few students are likely to take up the option (of not going straight into the electives after the LPC) and if there are “negative” consequences of offering the choice (such as an extended study period and greater expense), then those consequences more than outweigh any issues of principle concerning greater choice.
Is studying the electives separately from the compulsory subjects likely to 

be a popular option? Please give reasons for your answer.
· Those who start their training contracts without having completed the electives beforehand are likely to be less “rounded” (a suggestion raised in the consultation paper itself).

· Studying for electives would be an unnecessary distraction from the training contract itself, and there is no real benefit from studying a particular area of practice just before going on to a seat in that area in the firm.

· It is likely that an expectation would arise that firms would release trainees for their studies and would pay for the relevant courses (as currently tends to happen with the PSC).

· The firms represented at the meeting would clearly (indeed unanimously) prefer their trainees to have completed the electives before the commencement of the training contract.

· On the assumption that the supply of trainees continues to outstrip the numbers of training contracts available, the market will dictate that those individuals who have not completed the elective subjects will not be offered training contracts. For that reason, it is not likely to be a popular option.
Would disengaging the electives create any problems in relation to institutions 

making awards to students on completion of the newly defined LPC? 
Yes. It is likely that the proposed new LPC would attract the qualification of “Certificate” rather than “Diploma”. At many institutions it would not be possible to upgrade from Certificate to Diploma by the later addition of the electives because that would involve a double counting of the credits that make up the Certificate.
To what extent, if any, would training firms need to adjust their management of 

trainees arriving immediately after the compulsory part of the LPC? Is this at all likely 

to lead to perceptions of a two-tier system (those who are able to study the course at 

once, and those who are not able to do so)?
Significantly; which is partly why many firms would not take on such trainees (see the bullet points above).
Should there be a requirement for the electives to be undertaken only after 

completion of the LPC? Or could an elective be studied, for example, as part of a 

degree or masters programme before completion of the LPC?
The suggestion that an elective could be studied and completed before the LPC is particularly bizarre. It is hard to imagine a clearer example of the cart being put before the horse. The electives are intended (quite properly) to build upon the compulsory elements of the LPC. Providers are encouraged to continue to weave relevant skills (studied within and alongside the compulsory subjects) into the elective subjects. This would not be possible where an elective is studied prior to the LPC. Furthermore the whole ethos of the LPC is different to that of academic studies; every element of the LPC involves a considerable emphasis upon practice which is not appropriate in the context of true academic study.
Exemptions

Do you agree with the principle that the SRA should be able to grant exemptions (on 

the basis of criteria to be developed) from parts of the LPC? Please give reasons for 

your answer. 
Yes, provided that:

· Such exemptions are based upon qualifications rather than experience.

· Applications are decided solely by the SRA

· There is no reduction in fees for a student who is granted an exemption

It is not, however, simply a matter of principle, but of practicality, especially if it is thought that few students would benefit from the availability of exemptions.

What benefits or problems do you envisage in relation to the design and delivery of 

the LPC, if students were to be able to obtain exemptions from (a) the compulsory 

subjects, and (b) the skills?
The only benefits would be to the relevant students.

Compulsory subjects

· Teaching

Teaching of skills and professional conduct and financial services is woven through the compulsory subjects. If a student had an exemption from, say, Property Law and Practice then it is hard to see how this could be continued – unless the exemption was from the assessment and not from attendance.
· Assessment

There are three difficulties with giving an exemption from assessment in a compulsory area:

1. The assessments in the compulsory areas can include an element that counts towards the assessment of professional conduct and financial services. It is important that some part of professional conduct and financial services continues to be assessed in context. The most crucial part of such dealing with a professional conduct or financial services issue is identifying that there is a problem at all, and that element is lost if professional conduct or financial services is assessed wholly in a discrete exam.

If a student had an exemption from the examinations in, say, Property Law and Practice then it would not be possible to include in those examinations an element that counts towards the assessment of professional conduct or financial services.

2. The criteria for the award of commendations and distinctions requires having four marks of 60 or 70 and an average of 60 or 70, as the case may be. Would a student who has an exemption be given a notional mark of 50 for the purposes of deciding whether he/she might be awarded a commendation or distinction? If that is going to be the proposal then most students who might be entitled to an exemption in relation to a compulsory area, might well prefer to take the examination on the basis that this is their “banker” for a good mark.

3. The granting of an exemption by the SRA might give rise to difficulties in relation to some institutions making awards to students on completion of the LPC; indeed some institutions may have to refuse to take such students.
Skills

There are fewer problems in relation to exemptions from skills (although it is difficult to imagine many cases where it would be appropriate to grant an exemption anyway), other than the point made at 3, immediately above.
Can you identify any qualifications that might appropriately make students eligible for exemption from part or parts of the LPC?

There are very few obvious examples. An accountant could be given exemption from Business Accounts. It is difficult to think of many other examples.  It may be possible to limit exemptions to a number of specific areas. Does the qualification of Licensed Conveyancer sufficiently cover the elements that the Written Standards require of Property Law and Practice?
Relaxation of Regulatory Requirements

What opportunities or risks do you envisage for course providers in the relaxation of 

the regulatory requirements? 

See immediately below.
What are the potential benefits or disadvantages for students?
Whilst the proposed changes are being put forward in the name of choice, it is likely that this will lead to too much confusion in the minds of prospective LPC students.

Students’ choices will increasingly be influenced by the relative marketing muscle of the various providers. This will lead to some smaller providers deciding to leave the market and, in fact, the consequence will be that students’ choices are thereby reduced.

The changes to the monitoring regime have already started off this process. The Executive Summaries relating to monitoring visits are now pretty similar, partly because of the reduction of possible grades from five to three. Prospective students used to use the Executive Summaries to assist them in their choice of LPC provider, but those summaries are now of less assistance, and the marketing machines of the larger providers have a considerable influence.
What areas or issues, if any, should be covered by mandatory requirements laid 

down by the SRA and why?
The current regime works well, and the proposals for change do look like change for its own sake; the regime does not need to be changed.
Provision of Information to students and other stakeholders

In the light of the proposals made earlier in this document, what aspects of the 

proposals might cause confusion? How should any scope for confusion on the part of 

students and potential students about what is being required of them be minimised? 

They might all give rise to confusion. Disengaging the electives is certain to students not knowing what is the best thing to do, and there are other disadvantages that I have already mentioned.

Granting exemptions will lead to confusion as to what exemptions might be available to specific individuals, unless it is done by reference to a list prepared by the SRA. There are potentially greater difficulties, as mentioned previously, especially if exemptions might be allowed in relation to the compulsory subjects.

Relaxation of the regulatory requirements will lead to confusion in that it will be harder for prospective students to make true comparisons between providers, and may, paradoxically, reduce choice.

Confusion can most easily be minimised by not changing the system!
What information do you think the SRA should provide to students and other 

interested bodies, and through what channels? 
The system should remain as it is now except that the current grading system for monitoring visits should be changed so that it allows prospective students to be able to make true comparisons between providers.
What information do you think providers should be required to make available?
I would not change the current system.
Yours sincerely
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Andrew Callaghan
Director of Legal Practice
